
Real Estate Agency 

Equitable Center 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, Oregon  97301-2505 

Phone: (503) 378-4170 

Regulations Fax: (503) 373-7153 

Admin. Fax: (503) 378-2491 

www.oregon.gov/rea 

         

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 

Regular Meeting Amended Agenda 

Oregon Real Estate Agency 

Equitable Center 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, OR  97301 

Monday, February 6, 2017 
 

NOTE: The board plans to meet from 10 a.m. until 1:30 p.m., including a “working lunch” period. 

I. BOARD BUSINESS – Chair Edwards 

A. Call to Order 

B. Chair Edwards comments/Roll Call 

C. Approval of the Agenda and Order of Business 

D. Approval of 12.5.16, regular meeting minutes 

E. Date of the Next Meeting: 4.3.17 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable Center, 530 Center St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR  

97301 to begin at 10am. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT – Chair Edwards 

 This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on matters not on the agenda.  Speakers will be limited to five minutes.   

 The Board Chair reserves the right to further limit or exclude repetitious or irrelevant presentations.  If written material is included, 12 

copies of all information to be distributed to board members should be given to the Board Liaison prior to the meeting.  

 Action will not be taken at this meeting on citizen comments.  The Board, however, after hearing from interested citizens, may place 

items on a future agenda so proper notice may be given to all interested parties.  

  If no one wishes to comment, the next scheduled agenda item will be considered.       
   

III. REQUESTS FOR WAIVERS – Chair Edwards.  Log.  No change. 
 

IV. PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER– Chair Edwards.  Log. 

A. Systems Effect L.L.C. dba Training Cove, Steven Jordan to appear. 

B. American Dream Real Estate School. LLC, Herbert Nagamatsu to appear. 

C. Asset Preservation, Inc., Elisa Mas to appear by phone. 

D. Military Mortgage Boot Camp, Jay McMaken to appear by phone. 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS – Chair Edwards 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS – Administrative Actions Summary – Chair Edwards 
 

VII. REPORTS – Chair Edwards 

A. Commissioner Gene Bentley 

B. Agency division reports-Deputy Commissioner Dean Owens 

1. Regulation Division – Selina Barnes 

2. Land Development Division – Michael Hanifin 

3. Education, Business and Technical Services Division – Anna Higley and Maddy Alvarado 
 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS – Chair Edwards.  Next board meeting:  4.3.17 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable Center, 530 Center 

St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR  97301 to begin at 10am. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT – Chair Edwards 

 

Interpreter services or auxiliary aids for persons with disabilities are available upon advance request. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

I.C. 



O 

 

Real Estate Agency

Equitable Center 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, Oregon  97301‐2505 

Phone: (503) 378‐4170 

Regulations Fax: (503) 373‐7153 

Admin. Fax: (503) 378‐2491 

www.oregon.gov/rea 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

State of Oregon Real Estate Agency 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Hermanski, Chair 
        Coni Rathbone, Vice-Chair 
    Marcia Edwards 
    Joann Hansen 
    Pat Ihnat 
    Dave Koch 
    Alex MacLean 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Lawnae Hunter, excused 
    Jef Farley, excused 
 

GUESTS PRESENT:  Stacey Harrison, Superior A1 Schools 
    Josh Fuhrer, Citizen Development 
    Michelle Diester, Legislative Fiscal 
    John Wallace, OAR 
    Lane Mueller, Keller Williams 
         

I. BOARD BUSINESS-Chair Hermanski 
A. Call to Order.  Chair Hermanski called the meeting to order at 10am 
B. Chair Hermanski comment/Roll Call.  Chair Hermanski asked board liaison to take roll call and board 

members to introduce themselves 
C. Approval of Agenda and Order of Business.  Agenda and Order of Business were approved as 

submitted. 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS AS SUBMITTED BY DAVE KOCH 
SECOND BY MARCIA EDWARDS 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

D. Approval of 10.03.16, regular meeting minutes.  10.03.16 regular meeting minutes were approved as 
submitted. 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE 10.03.16 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BY DAVE KOCH 
SECOND BY PAT IHNAT 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

E. Date of next meeting:  2.6.17 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, Equitable Center, 530 Center St. 
NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR  97301 to begin at 10am 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT.  None 
 

III. REQUESTS FOR WAIVER-Chair Hermanski 
A. Joshua L. Fuhrer requests experience waiver for principal broker license.  Mr. Fuhrer appeared 

before the board and explained that he has been in the real estate industry on the commercial side for 13 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

I.D. 



Oregon Real Estate Agency Board Meeting 
December 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

years as developer and wanted to provide brokerage services in addition to what he currently provides to 
his clients.  He also explained that he currently has 3 partners, he being the primary developer, and he 
would not be supervising anyone or managing any client trust accounts.  Mr. Fuhrer stated although he 
currently was not a licensed broker, he has passed the exam.  Discussion:  Alex MacLean asked Vice-
Chair Rathbone if she suggested that Mr. Fuhrer hang his license with a principal broker and then reapply 
for waiver and she responded that she did feel that would be appropriate.   
 

MOTION TO DENY REQUEST FOR EXPERIENCE WAIVER SUBMITTED BY JOSHUA FUHRER BY 
MARCIA EDWARDS 
SECOND BY DAVE KOCH 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANMIOUS VOTE 
 

IV. PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCTION PROVIDER-Chair Hermanski. CEP Log 
A. Brix Law LLP, to appear by phone.  Laura Craska Cooper and Brad Miller appeared by phone and Mr. 

Miller explained Brix Law LP specializes in real estate and land use transactions and both he and Ms. 
Craska Cooper had an extensive amount of experience in the following areas:  real estate leasing, 
acquisitions, development, financing, general business, and negotiations.  Chair Hermanski asked Mr. 
Miller and Ms. Craska Cooper if they were familiar with the record keeping requirements as a certified 
education instructor and Mr. Miller responded that they were familiar this requirement.   
 

MOTION TO APPROVE PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER 
SUBMITTED BY BRIX LAW LLP BY CONI RATHBONE 
SECOND BY DAVE KOCH 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

V. BOARD ADVICE/ACTION-Commissioner Bentley 
A. 2017 Meeting Schedule: 

 February 6-Salem 
 April 3-Salem 
 June 5-Lincoln City 
 August 7-Klamath Falls 
 October 2-Springfield 
 December 4-Gresham 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED 2017 MEETING SCHEDULE BY JOANN HANSEN 
SECOND BY MARCIA EDWARDS 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS-Administrative Actions Summary – Chair Hermanski.   
 

VII. REPORTS-Chair Hermanski 
A. Commissioner Gene Bentley 

-Agency Budget-summary of proposed fee increases 
-License counts-Commissioner Bentley summarized licensing statistics/counts 
-OAR professionalism-OAR is exploring the concepts of requiring licensees to complete an AP course 
and also adjusting the BASS course.  Chair Hermanski stated that he would support and endorse the 
process for property managers to be licensed.  Commissioner Bentley responded that OAR has addressed 
the issue of a license requirement for property managers.  Joann Hansen responded that she would like to 
see brokers and principal brokers be required to take property management education.  Commissioner 
Bentley explained that the Agency has expanded education for property managers and the process 
continues.   
-OAR discussion-Commissioner Bentley reported that he has heard small firms are not inclined to have E 
& O insurance.  Dave Koch responded that he was not particularly supportive of that.  Joann Hansen 
responded that this should be a business decision that each firm should make. 



Oregon Real Estate Agency Board Meeting 
December 5, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

-Farwell to Chair Hermanski-Commissioner Bentley presented Chair Hermanski with a letter of 
recognition from Governor Brown and also a certificate of appreciation from the Agency for his dedicated 
service as a board member.  Chair Hermanski responded that he enjoyed his time as a board member and 
also appreciated all the contacts and friendships he has developed over the years. 

 

B. Agency division reports-Deputy Commissioner Dean Owens 
1. Regulation Division-Selina Barnes.  Ms. Barnes reported the division was conducting 

as usual and announced the completion of two Financial Investigator recruitments have 
been completed resulting in Lisa Montello and Lindsey Nunes filling both positions.   

2. Land Development Division-Michael Hanifin.  No report 
3. Education, Business and Technical Services Division-Dean Owens, Anna Higley, 

and Maddy Alvarado.  Ms. Higley announced that Liz Hayes will be joining the Agency 
as the new receptionist filling in for Sue Davenhill, who has been assigned Compliance 
Specialist duties.  Ms. Higley provided a budget summary.  Deputy Commissioner 
Owens reported there were issues with the timing of education courses and Agency is 
exploring the possibility of implementing timer mechanisms.   

 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS-Chair Hermanski.  Next board meeting:  2.6.17 at the Oregon Real Estate Agency, 
Equitable Center, 530 Center St NE, Salem, OR  97301 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted:      Respectfully submitted: 

 

_____________________________________      ____________________________________ 
GENE BENTLEY, COMMISSIONER    MARCIA EDWARDS, CHAIR 

 



 1 

OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 
CEP LOG – 2016/2017 

4.4.16 Brian Greer APPROVED FACTS:  Mr. Geer explained that he owned 3 service master companies and has been in the disaster industry for many years.  He also 

explained that he provides education on the following topics:  disaster restoration, water damage, risk management, business ethics, and 

property management, which are considered acceptable course topics.   

DISCUSSION:  None 

MOTION TO APPROVE BRIAN GREER’S PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER BY 

DAVE KOCH 

SECOND BY CONI RATHBONE 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
4.4.16 John Estrem APPROVED FACTS:  Mr. Estrem appeared by phone and reviewed his qualifications which included providing education for approximately 15 

years.  He also explained he provides education on the topic of risk management, which is considered an acceptable course topic.  Chair 

Hermanski asked Mr. Estrem if he was aware of the record keeping requirements for continuing education providers and he responded 

that he was aware of the record keeping requirements.   

DISCUSSION:  None.   

MOTION TO APPROVE JOHN ESTREM’S PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER BY 

CONIE RATHBONE 

SECOND BY PAT IHNAT 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
6.6.16 CMPS Institute (Gibran Nicholas) APPROVED FACTS:  Chair Hermanski asked CMPS to summarize the basis of their petition.  Gibran Nicholas explained that CMPS Institute has 

provided education across the country and is approved in 10 states to provide CE to real estate agents.  Mr. Nicholas also explained 

CMPS Institute offers the following acceptable course topics:  advertising; regulation; consumer protection; real estate taxation; and 

finance.  Chair Hermanski asked if they were familiar with the record keeping requirements and Ms. Nicholas responded that they are 

familiar with the record keeping requirements 

DISCUSSION:  None. 

MOTION TO APPROVE CMPS INSTITUTE’S PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDCUATION PROVIDER 

BY MARCIA EDWARDS 

SECOND BY LAWNAE HUNTER 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE   

10.3.16 Michelle Moore APPROVED FACTS:  Ms. Moore explained that she had nine years of experience in providing continuing education courses covering the following 

topics: real estate consumer protection, risk management, dispute resolution, and negotiation, which are considered acceptable course 

topics. Dave Koch asked Ms. Moore if she was familiar with the record keeping requirements involved with being a provider and she 

responded that she was aware of the requirements. 
DISCUSSION:  None 

MOTION TO APPROVE BY DAVE KOCH 

SECOND BY LAWNAE HUNTER 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
12.05.16 Brix Law LLP APPROVED FACTS:  Laura Craska Cooper and Brad Miller appeared by phone and Mr. Miller explained Brix Law LP specializes in real estate and 

land use transactions and both he and Ms. Craska Cooper had an extensive amount of experience in the following areas:  real estate 

leasing, acquisitions, development, financing, general business, and negotiations.  Chair Hermanski asked Mr. Miller and Ms. Craska 

Cooper if they were familiar with the record keeping requirements as a certified education instructor and Mr. Miller responded that they 

were familiar this requirement. 

MOTION TO APPROVE PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER SUBMITTED BY BRIX 

LAW LLP BY CONI RATHBONE 

SECOND BY DAVE KOCH 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 

2.6.17 Systems Effect LLC dba Training 

Cove 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

IV. 



 2 

 

 

2.6.17 American Dream Real Estate 

School 

  

2.6.17 Asset Preservation, Inc.   

2.6.17 Military Mortgage Boot Camp   





































































 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS 
Reported 

11/15/16 through 1/24/17 
 
 

REVOCATIONS 
 
Hillendahl, Lane (Cottage Grove) Principal Broker 200506313, Stipulated Order dated December 2, 
2016, revoking her license.  
 
Dugas, Stephanie (Cottage Grove) Broker 200601098, Default Order dated December 20, 2016, 
revoking her license. 
 
Buckley, Charles (Toledo) Principal Broker 811100166, Default Order dated January 3, 2017, 
revoking his license.  
 
Gregg, Richard (Newport Beach, CA) Principal Broker 201208284, Default Order dated January 18, 
2017, revoking his license.  
 
McIver, Benjamin (Eugene) Property Manager 990800144, Default Order dated January 20, 2017, 
revoking his license.  
 
SUSPENSIONS 
 
 
 
REPRIMANDS 
 
 
CIVIL PENALTIES 
 
Expired — Late Renewal civil penalties are computed using each 30-day period as a single offense.  
The civil penalty for the first 30-day period can range from $100-$500, with each subsequent 30-day 
period ranging from $500-$1,000.  ORS 696.990 
 
Forhan, Anthony (Portland) Property Manager 200805072, Stipulated Order dated November 29, 
2016, issuing a civil penalty of $1,600 for a late renewal.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

V1. 

























































































1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

79th OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY--2017 Regular Session

House Bill 5037
Introduced and printed pursuant to House Rule 12.00. Presession filed (at the request of Oregon Department of

Administrative Services)

SUMMARY

The following summary is not prepared by the sponsors of the measure and is not a part of the body thereof subject
to consideration by the Legislative Assembly. It is an editor’s brief statement of the essential features of the
measure as introduced.

Limits biennial expenditures from fees, moneys or other revenues, including Miscellaneous Re-
ceipts, but excluding lottery funds and federal funds, collected or received by Real Estate Agency.

Declares emergency, effective July 1, 2017.

A BILL FOR AN ACT

Relating to the financial administration of the Real Estate Agency; and declaring an emergency.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

SECTION 1. Notwithstanding any other law limiting expenditures, the amount of

$7,844,653 is established for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, as the maximum limit for

payment of expenses from fees, moneys or other revenues, including Miscellaneous Receipts,

but excluding lottery funds and federal funds, collected or received by the Real Estate

Agency.

SECTION 2. This 2017 Act being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public

peace, health and safety, an emergency is declared to exist, and this 2017 Act takes effect

July 1, 2017.

Note: For budget, see 2017-2019 Biennial Budget
NOTE: Matter in boldfaced type in an amended section is new; matter [italic and bracketed] is existing law to be omitted.

New sections are in boldfaced type.

LC 9037

AGENDA ITEM NO.
VII. A.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

79th OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY--2017 Regular Session

Senate Bill 67
Printed pursuant to Senate Interim Rule 213.28 by order of the President of the Senate in conformance with pre-

session filing rules, indicating neither advocacy nor opposition on the part of the President (at the request
of Governor Kate Brown for Real Estate Agency)

SUMMARY

The following summary is not prepared by the sponsors of the measure and is not a part of the body thereof subject
to consideration by the Legislative Assembly. It is an editor’s brief statement of the essential features of the
measure as introduced.

Defines “business day,” “commingle” and “main office” for purposes of certain real estate stat-
utes. Clarifies system for registration and renewal of business names. Exempts certain checks from
requirement to deposit funds into clients’ trust accounts. Requires real estate licensees to notify
Real Estate Agency of certain activities regarding clients’ trust accounts. Prohibits certain individ-
uals from sharing compensation of real estate licensee.

A BILL FOR AN ACT

Relating to activities regulated by the Real Estate Agency; creating new provisions; and amending

ORS 696.010, 696.022, 696.026, 696.030, 696.125, 696.130, 696.174, 696.182, 696.200, 696.205, 696.232,

696.241, 696.243, 696.245, 696.280, 696.290, 696.301, 696.310, 696.385, 696.505, 696.520, 696.582,

696.710 and 696.800.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

SECTION 1. Sections 2 and 7 of this 2017 Act are added to and made a part of ORS

chapter 696.

SECTION 2. (1) A violation of a provision of ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785,

696.800 to 696.870 or 696.890, or a rule adopted pursuant to those sections, by a real estate

licensee is not cause for the suspension or revocation of the license of another real estate

licensee who is associated with the real estate licensee who committed the violation unless

the Real Estate Commissioner, in the commissioner’s discretion, determines that the asso-

ciated real estate licensee had knowledge of the violation by the real estate licensee.

(2) For purposes of a contested case hearing under ORS chapter 183, a persistent course

of dealing by the real estate licensee who violated a provision of ORS 696.010 to 696.495,

696.600 to 696.785, 696.800 to 696.870 or 696.890, or a rule adopted pursuant to those sections,

constitutes prima facie evidence that an associated real estate licensee had knowledge of the

violation by the real estate licensee.

SECTION 3. ORS 696.010 is amended to read:

696.010. As used in ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785, 696.800 to 696.870, 696.990 and

696.995, unless the context requires otherwise:

(1) “Associated with” means to be employed, engaged or otherwise supervised by, with respect

to the relationship between:

(a) A real estate broker and a principal real estate broker;

(b) A licensed real estate property manager and a principal real estate broker; or

(c) A licensed real estate property manager and another licensed real estate property manager.

(2) “Bank” includes any bank or trust company, savings bank, mutual savings bank, savings and

NOTE: Matter in boldfaced type in an amended section is new; matter [italic and bracketed] is existing law to be omitted.

New sections are in boldfaced type.

LC 696



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

loan association or credit union that maintains a head office or a branch in this state in the capacity

of a bank or trust company, savings bank, mutual savings bank, savings and loan association or

credit union.

(3)(a) “Branch office” means a business location, other than the main office designated under

ORS 696.200 [(1)], where professional real estate activity is regularly conducted or that is advertised

to the public as a place where [such business] professional real estate activity may be regularly

conducted.

(b) Model units or temporary structures used solely for the dissemination of information and

distribution of lawfully required public reports shall not be considered branch offices. A model unit

means a permanent residential structure located in a subdivision or development used for such dis-

semination and distribution, so long as the unit is at all times available for sale, lease, lease option

or exchange.

(4) “Business day” means a day other than Saturday or Sunday or a federal or State of

Oregon legal holiday.

(5) “Commingle” means the mixing of funds from any source, including personal funds,

with trust funds as defined in ORS 696.241, by a licensed real estate property manager or

principal real estate broker, except as specifically authorized by this chapter.

[(4)] (6) “Compensation” means [any fee, commission, salary, money or] valuable consideration for

services rendered or to be rendered [as well as the promise thereof and], whether contingent or

otherwise.

[(5)] (7) “Competitive market analysis” means a method or process used by a real estate licensee

in pursuing a listing agreement or in formulating an offer to acquire real estate in a transaction for

the sale, lease, lease-option or exchange of real estate. The objective of competitive market analysis

is a recommended listing, selling or purchase price or a lease or rental consideration. A competitive

market analysis may be expressed as an opinion of the value of the real estate in a contemplated

transaction. Competitive market analysis may include but is not limited to an analysis of market

conditions, public records, past transactions and current listings of real estate.

[(6)] (8) “Expired” means, in the context of a real estate licensee, that the license has not been

renewed in a timely manner, but may still be renewed.

[(7)] (9) “Inactive” means, in the context of a real estate licensee, that the [license has been re-

turned to the agency to be held until the licensee reactivates the license or the license expires or

lapses.] licensee is not authorized to engage in professional real estate activity. The inactive

status of a license continues until the license is reactivated or the license expires or lapses.

[(8)] (10) “Lapsed” means, in the context of a real estate licensee, that the license has not been

renewed in a timely manner and is not eligible for renewal.

[(9)] (11) “Letter opinion” has the meaning given that term in ORS 696.294.

[(10)] (12) “Licensed real estate property manager” means an individual who holds an active real

estate property manager’s license issued under ORS 696.022.

(13) “Main office” means the office designated by a principal real estate broker or li-

censed real estate property manager pursuant to ORS 696.200.

[(11)] (14) “Management of rental real estate” means:

(a) Representing the owner of real estate under a property management agreement in the

rental or lease of the real estate and includes but is not limited to:

(A) Advertising the real estate for rent or lease;

(B) Procuring prospective tenants to rent or lease the real estate;

[2]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(C) Negotiating with prospective tenants;

(D) Accepting deposits from prospective tenants;

(E) Checking the qualifications and creditworthiness of prospective tenants;

(F) Charging and collecting rent or lease payments;

(G) Representing the owner in inspection or repair of the real estate;

(H) Contracting for repair or remodeling of the real estate;

(I) Holding trust funds or property received in managing the real estate and accounting to the

owner for the funds or property;

(J) Advising the owner regarding renting or leasing the real estate;

(K) Providing staff and services to accommodate the tax reporting and other financial or ac-

counting needs of the real estate;

(L) Providing copies of records of acts performed on behalf of the owner of the real estate; and

(M) Offering or attempting to do any of the acts described in this paragraph for the owner of

the real estate; or

(b) Representing a tenant or prospective tenant when renting or leasing real estate for which

a real estate property manager has a property management agreement with the owner of the

real estate and includes but is not limited to:

(A) Consulting with tenants or prospective tenants about renting or leasing real estate;

(B) Assisting prospective tenants in renting or leasing real estate;

(C) Assisting prospective tenants in qualifying for renting or leasing real estate;

(D) Accepting deposits or other funds from prospective tenants for renting or leasing real estate

and holding the funds in trust for the prospective tenants;

(E) Representing tenants or prospective tenants renting or leasing real estate; and

(F) Offering or attempting to do any of the acts described in this paragraph for a tenant or

prospective tenant.

[(12)] (15) “Nonlicensed individual” means an individual:

(a) Who has not obtained a real estate license; or

(b) Whose real estate license is lapsed, expired, inactive, suspended, surrendered or revoked.

[(13)] (16) “Principal real estate broker” means[:]

[(a)] an individual who holds an active license as a principal real estate broker issued under

ORS 696.022.[; or]

[(b) A sole practitioner who conducted professional real estate activity as a sole practitioner prior

to January 1, 2010.]

[(14)] (17) “Professional real estate activity” means any of the following actions, when engaged

in for another and for compensation or with the intention or in the expectation or upon the promise

of receiving or collecting compensation, by any person who:

(a) Sells, exchanges, purchases, rents or leases real estate;

(b) Offers to sell, exchange, purchase, rent or lease real estate;

(c) Negotiates, offers, attempts or agrees to negotiate the sale, exchange, purchase, rental or

leasing of real estate;

(d) Lists, offers, attempts or agrees to list real estate for sale;

(e) Offers, attempts or agrees to perform or provide a competitive market analysis or letter

opinion, to represent a taxpayer under ORS 305.230 or 309.100 or to give an opinion in any admin-

istrative or judicial proceeding regarding the value of real estate for taxation, except when the ac-

tivity is performed by a state certified appraiser or state licensed appraiser;

[3]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(f) Auctions, offers, attempts or agrees to auction real estate;

(g) Buys, sells, offers to buy or sell or otherwise deals in options on real estate;

(h) Engages in management of rental real estate;

(i) Purports to be engaged in the business of buying, selling, exchanging, renting or leasing real

estate;

(j) Assists or directs in the procuring of prospects, calculated to result in the sale, exchange,

leasing or rental of real estate;

(k) Assists or directs in the negotiation or closing of any transaction calculated or intended to

result in the sale, exchange, leasing or rental of real estate;

(L) Except as otherwise provided in ORS 696.030 (12), advises, counsels, consults or analyzes in

connection with real estate values, sales or dispositions, including dispositions through eminent do-

main procedures;

(m) Advises, counsels, consults or analyzes in connection with the acquisition or sale of real

estate by an entity if the purpose of the entity is investment in real estate; or

(n) Performs real estate marketing activity as described in ORS 696.600.

[(15)] (18) “Property management agreement” means a written contract for the management of

rental real estate between a real estate property manager and the owner of the rental real estate.

[(16)] (19) “Real estate” includes leaseholds and licenses to use including, but not limited to,

timeshare estates and timeshare licenses as defined in ORS 94.803, as well as any and every interest

or estate in real property, whether corporeal or incorporeal, whether freehold or nonfreehold,

whether held separately or in common with others and whether the real property is situated in this

state or elsewhere.

[(17)] (20) “Real estate broker” means an individual [who engages in professional real estate ac-

tivity and] who holds an active license as a real estate broker issued under ORS 696.022.

[(18)] (21) “Real estate licensee” means an individual who holds an active license or an active

limited license as a real estate broker, principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property

manager.

[(19)] (22) “Real estate property manager” means a real estate licensee who engages in the

management of rental real estate and is a licensed real estate property manager, a principal real

estate broker or a real estate broker who is associated with and supervised by a principal real es-

tate broker.

[(20)] (23) “Registered business name” means a name registered with the Real Estate Agency

under which the individual registering the name engages in professional real estate activity.

[(21) “Sole practitioner” means a real estate broker conducting professional real estate activity not

in conjunction with other real estate brokers or principal real estate brokers and who, prior to January

1, 2010:]

[(a) Acquired three years of active experience as a real estate broker; or]

[(b) Acquired three years of active experience as a real estate salesperson as defined in ORS

696.025 (1999 Edition) and successfully completed the real estate broker’s examination required by rule

of the agency.]

SECTION 4. ORS 696.022 is amended to read:

696.022. (1) The Real Estate Agency shall establish by rule a system for licensing real estate

brokers, principal real estate brokers and licensed real estate property managers. The system shall

establish, at a minimum:

(a) The form and content of applications for licensing under each category of real estate pro-

[4]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

fessional licensed by the agency;

(b) A licensing examination for each category of license;

(c) Schedules and procedures for issuing and renewing licenses[;], including limited licenses

under ORS 696.125; and

(d) The term of a license in each category[; and].

[(e) Terms and conditions under which the license of a real estate licensee must be returned or

transferred to the Real Estate Commissioner for purposes including, but not limited to, inactivation,

suspension or termination of the license.]

(2)(a) A real estate broker may engage in professional real estate activity only if the broker is

associated with and supervised by a principal real estate broker. Except as provided in paragraph

(c) of this subsection, a real estate broker may not employ, engage or supervise the professional real

estate activity of another real estate licensee.

(b) For an applicant to qualify for a real estate broker’s license, [an applicant must furnish to]

the Real Estate Commissioner [at the time of application for the license] must receive:

(A) Certification by the applicant that the applicant has a high school diploma or a General

Educational Development (GED) certificate or the international equivalent, or other equivalent ed-

ucation acceptable to the commissioner;

(B) Proof that the applicant:

(i) Has successfully completed the basic real estate broker’s educational courses required by the

agency by rule [of the agency]; and

(ii) Has passed the real estate broker’s examination required by the agency by rule [of the

agency]; and

(C) Certification that the applicant is at least 18 years of age.

(c) A real estate broker who has acquired three years of active experience as a real estate

broker may [temporarily] supervise for up to 90 days the professional real estate activity of another

real estate licensee due to unforeseen circumstances or the temporary absence of a sole principal

real estate broker, as provided by the agency by rule. [of the agency. The temporary supervision of

professional real estate activity allowed under this paragraph may not exceed 90 days.]

(3)(a) A principal real estate broker may engage in professional real estate activity. [A principal

real estate broker may conduct professional real estate activity in conjunction with other real estate

brokers or principal real estate brokers or licensed real estate property managers. In addition, a prin-

cipal real estate broker may employ, engage or supervise the professional real estate activity of another

real estate licensee.]

(b) A principal real estate broker may conduct professional real estate activity in con-

junction with other real estate brokers, principal real estate brokers or licensed real estate

property managers. A principal real estate broker may employ, engage or supervise the

professional real estate activity of another real estate licensee.

[(b)] (c) For an applicant to qualify for a principal real estate broker’s license, [an applicant

must furnish to] the commissioner [at the time of application for the license] must receive:

(A) Certification by the applicant that the applicant has a high school diploma or a General

Educational Development (GED) certificate or the international equivalent, or other equivalent ed-

ucation acceptable to the commissioner;

(B) Proof that the applicant:

(i) Has three years of active licensed experience as a licensed real estate broker or a licensed

real estate salesperson [as defined in ORS 696.025 (1999 Edition)] in this state or another state;

[5]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(ii) Has passed the principal real estate broker’s examination required by the agency by rule

[of the agency]; and

(iii) Has successfully completed the brokerage administration and sales supervision course re-

quired by the agency by rule [of the agency]; and

(C) Certification that the applicant is at least 18 years of age.

(4)(a) An individual who holds a real estate property manager license may engage only in the

management of rental real estate under a property management agreement with the owner of

the rental real estate.

(b) A licensed real estate property manager may employ, engage or supervise the professional

real estate activity of another licensed real estate property manager.

(c) For an applicant to qualify for a real estate property manager’s license, [an applicant must

furnish to] the commissioner [at the time of application for the license] must receive:

(A) Certification by the applicant that the applicant has a high school diploma or General Ed-

ucational Development (GED) certificate or the international equivalent, or other equivalent edu-

cation acceptable to the commissioner;

(B) Proof that the applicant:

(i) Has successfully completed the basic real estate property manager’s educational courses re-

quired by the agency by rule [of the agency]; and

(ii) Has passed the real estate property manager’s license examination required by the agency

by rule [of the agency]; and

(C) Certification that the applicant is at least 18 years of age.

(5)(a) A license for a real estate broker, principal real estate broker or licensed real estate

property manager may be granted only to an individual who is trustworthy and competent to con-

duct professional real estate activity in a manner that protects the public interest. As a condition

of licensing, the commissioner may require proof of competence and trustworthiness that the com-

missioner deems necessary to protect the public interest.

(b) In implementing this subsection, the commissioner shall require fingerprints and criminal

offender information of an applicant for initial licensing and may require fingerprints and criminal

offender information of an applicant for license renewal. Fingerprints acquired under this sub-

section may be used for the purpose of requesting a state or nationwide criminal records check

under ORS 181A.195.

(6) [In order to qualify for a real estate broker’s license, a real estate salesperson licensed in an-

other state or country must successfully complete a course of study and pass a real estate broker’s li-

cense examination, both as prescribed by agency rule.] An individual licensed to engage in

professional real estate activity in another state or country may qualify for a principal real

estate broker license, real estate broker license or real estate property manager license if

the individual successfully completes the course of study for and passes the license exam-

ination corresponding to the license for which the individual applies, both as prescribed by

agency rule, and if the individual meets the other requirements for licensure in this chapter.

(7) In order to satisfy the educational requirements under subsections (2) to (4) and (6) of this

section, a course must be approved by the commissioner. The commissioner shall determine the final

examination score acceptable as evidence of successful completion for each required course.

(8) The Real Estate Board may determine that an applicant for a principal real estate broker’s

license has experience related to professional real estate activity that is equivalent to the experi-

ence required under subsection (3) of this section.

[6]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

SECTION 5. ORS 696.026 is amended to read:

696.026. (1) The Real Estate Agency shall establish by rule [a system] systems for the registra-

tion and renewal of business names.

(2)[(a)] The registration system must [require]:

[(A)] (a) Require the physical address associated with a registered business name to be the main

office of a principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager; [and]

[(B)] (b) Require the registered business name to be:

(A) The corporate name, professional corporate name, business corporate name, cooperative

name, limited partnership name, business trust name, reserved name, registered corporate name or

assumed business name of active record with the Office of the Secretary of State; or

(B) The name under which the principal real estate broker or licensed real estate prop-

erty manager license was issued;

[(b) The agency may establish by rule that the registration system must:]

[(A) Identify the principal real estate broker or the licensed real estate property manager who is

responsible for:]

[(i) Maintaining the registration of the business name, as described in subsection (2)(a) of this

section;]

[(ii) Registering any branch offices of the registered business name; and]

[(iii) Registering any additional business names as described in subsection (9)(a) of this section.]

[(B) Maintain the information described in ORS 696.241 (4) and (6) for each clients’ trust account

opened, closed or transferred by a principal real estate broker or by a licensed real estate property

manager who conducts professional real estate activity under the registered business name; and]

(c) [The system must] Allow a principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property man-

ager to register one or more branch offices under the registered business name of the main

office[.]; and

(d) Require the name of the principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property

manager who is responsible for:

(A) Maintaining the registration of the business name;

(B) Registering any branch offices of the registered business name;

(C) Registering any additional business names, as described in subsection (14) of this

section;

(D) Maintaining the information described in ORS 696.245 for each clients’ trust account

opened, closed or transferred by a principal real estate broker or licensed real estate prop-

erty manager who conducts professional real estate activity under the registered business

name;

(E) Renewing the registration of the business name;

(F) Changing the registered business name, including the associated branch offices;

(G) Maintaining the business address of the main office and any associated branch offices

of the registered business name as required by ORS 696.200; and

(H) Inactivating or reactivating the registration of the business name and associated

branch offices.

(3) The renewal system must establish:

(a) The form and content of the renewal application;

(b) The schedule for annual renewals of registered business names, including the date of

the registered business name expiration; and

[7]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(c) The procedures for renewing a registered business name.

(4) Failure to renew a registered business name and pay any required fees by the expi-

ration date of the registration will result in:

(a) The expiration of the registered business name;

(b) The inactivation of all associated licensees; and

(c) The inactivation of all associated branch offices.

(5) The Real Estate Commissioner may by rule provide an opportunity for the late re-

newal of an expired registered business name.

[(3)] (6) Only a principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may reg-

ister a business name or register a branch office under the registered business name of the main

office.

[(4)] (7) Only a principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may control

and supervise the professional real estate activity conducted under the registered business name.

[(5)] (8) A business name registered under this section has no license standing.

[(6) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may conduct profes-

sional real estate activity only under:]

[(a) The name under which the principal broker or property manager’s license was issued; or]

[(b) A registered business name.]

[(7) If a principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager has a registered

business name:]

[(a)] (9) All professional real estate activity conducted by the principal real estate broker

[or], licensed real estate property manager or real estate licensees associated with a principal

real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager must be conducted under [the] an

active registered business name[; and].

[(b) All professional real estate activity conducted by a real estate licensee associated with the

principal broker or property manager must be conducted under the registered business name.]

[(8)] (10) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager who registers

a business name need not be an owner or officer of any entity lawfully entitled to use or have an

ownership interest in the registered business name. However, only a principal real estate broker or

licensed real estate property manager may control and supervise the professional real estate activity

conducted under the registered business name.

[(9)(a) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager who registers a

business name may register additional business names for business organizations that are affiliated

with the business with the registered name, or business organizations that are subsidiaries of the

business with the registered name.]

[(b) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may conduct profes-

sional real estate activity under two or more registered business names only if the business organiza-

tions are affiliated with, or subsidiaries of, the business with the registered name.]

[(10)] (11) A real estate broker [or licensed real estate property manager] associated with a

principal real estate broker may have an ownership interest in any business through which the

principal real estate broker conducts professional real estate activity, but may not control or su-

pervise the professional real estate activity of any other real estate licensee.

(12) A licensed real estate property manager associated with a principal real estate bro-

ker may have an ownership interest in any business through which the principal real estate

broker conducts professional real estate activity, but may not control or supervise the pro-

[8]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

fessional real estate activity of a real estate broker or principal real estate broker.

[(11)] (13) A nonlicensed individual may have an ownership interest in any business through

which a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker engages in profes-

sional real estate activity, but may not control or supervise the professional real estate activity of

any real estate licensee.

[(12) Two or more principal real estate brokers operating under the same registered business name

who do not exercise any administrative or supervisory control over one another are solely responsible

for their own professional real estate activity.]

[(13) Notwithstanding any other provision of ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785, 696.800

to 696.870, 696.990 and 696.995, a principal real estate broker or real estate broker associated with a

principal real estate broker may create a corporation, limited liability company, limited liability part-

nership or any other lawfully constituted business organization for the purpose of receiving compen-

sation. A real estate broker associated with a principal real estate broker may receive compensation

only from a principal real estate broker. A business organization created under this subsection may

not be licensed under ORS 696.022 or conduct in its own name professional real estate activity re-

quiring a real estate license.]

(14)(a) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager who reg-

isters a business name may register additional business names for business organizations

that are affiliated with the registered business name, or business organizations that are

subsidiaries of the business with the registered name.

(b) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may conduct

professional real estate activity under two or more registered business names only if the

business organizations are affiliated with, or subsidiaries of, the business with the registered

name.

(15) The agency shall establish by rule procedures to allow a real estate broker or prin-

cipal real estate broker who becomes associated with a different registered business name

to continue to engage in professional real estate activity on transactions that began while

the real estate broker or principal real estate broker was associated with the original regis-

tered business name.

SECTION 6. ORS 696.030 is amended to read:

696.030. ORS 696.010 to 696.375, 696.392, 696.395 to 696.430, 696.490, 696.600 to 696.785, 696.990

and 696.995 do not apply to:

(1)(a) A nonlicensed individual who is a full-time employee of an owner of real estate and whose

real estate activity:

(A) Involves only the real estate of the employer; and

(B)(i) Is incidental to the employee’s normal, nonreal estate activities; or

(ii) Is the employee’s principal activity, but the employer’s principal activity or business is not

the sale, exchange, lease option or acquisition of real estate.

(b) For the purpose of this subsection, “owner of real estate” means:

(A) [An individual] A person who has a sole ownership interest in the real estate; or

(B) More than one [individual] person, each of whom has an ownership interest in the real es-

tate, if the ownership interest is by survivorship, tenancy in common or tenancy by the entirety.

(2) A nonlicensed individual who acts as attorney in fact under a duly executed power of at-

torney from the owner or purchaser authorizing the supervision of the closing of or supervision of

the performance of a contract for the sale, leasing or exchanging of real estate if the power of at-

[9]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

torney was executed prior to July 1, 2002, in compliance with the requirements of law at the time

of execution or if:

(a) The power of attorney is recorded in the office of the recording officer for the county in

which the real estate is located;

(b) The power of attorney specifically describes the real estate; and

(c) The nonlicensed individual does not use the power of attorney as a device to engage in

professional real estate activity without obtaining the necessary real estate license.

(3) A nonlicensed individual who acts as attorney in fact under a duly executed power of at-

torney in which the authorized agent is the spouse of the principal, or the child, grandchild, parent,

grandparent, sibling, aunt, uncle, niece or nephew of the principal or of the spouse of the principal,

authorizing real estate activity if the power of attorney is recorded in the office of the recording

officer for the county in which the real estate to be sold, leased or exchanged is located.

(4) A nonlicensed individual who is an attorney at law rendering services in the performance

of duties as an attorney at law.

(5) A nonlicensed individual who acts in the nonlicensed individual’s official capacity as a re-

ceiver, a conservator, a trustee in bankruptcy, a personal representative or a trustee, or a regular

salaried employee of the trustee, acting under a trust agreement, deed of trust or will.

(6) A nonlicensed individual who performs an act of professional real estate activity under order

of a court.

(7) A nonlicensed individual who is a regular full-time employee of a single corporation, part-

nership, association, limited liability company or nonlicensed individual owner of real property act-

ing for the corporation, partnership, association, limited liability company or nonlicensed individual

owner in the rental or management of the real property, but not in the sale, exchange, lease option

or purchase of the real property.

(8) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a registered professional engineer or architect ren-

dering services in performance of duties as a professional engineer or architect.

(9) A nonlicensed individual who is employed by a principal real estate broker engaged in the

management of rental real estate or by a licensed real estate property manager and who acts on

behalf of the principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager pursuant to a

written delegation of the principal real estate broker’s or licensed real estate property manager’s

authority, as provided by the agency by rule, if the real estate activity of the nonlicensed individual

is limited to:

(a) Negotiating rental or lease agreements;

(b) Checking tenant and credit references;

(c) Physically maintaining the real estate;

(d) Conducting tenant relations;

(e) Collecting the rent;

(f) Supervising the premises’ managers;

(g) Discussing financial matters relating to the management of the real estate with the owner;

and

(h) Receiving and disbursing trust funds in a clients’ trust account under ORS 696.241.

(10) [An] A nonlicensed individual who sells or leases cemetery lots, parcels or units while

engaged in the disposition of human bodies under ORS 97.010 to 97.040, 97.110 to 97.450, 97.510 to

97.730, 97.810 to 97.920 and 97.990 or an employee of the nonlicensed individual performing similar

activities.

[10]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(11) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a salaried employee of the State of Oregon, or any

of its political subdivisions, engaging in professional real estate activity as a part of such employ-

ment.

(12) A nonlicensed individual who analyzes or provides advice regarding permissible land use

alternatives, environmental impact, building and use permit procedures, development alternatives

or demographic market studies or who performs development management, or a regular full-time

employee of the nonlicensed individual performing similar activities. This exclusion does not apply

to marketing, procuring prospects, leasing or the handling of transactional negotiations for

transfer of an interest in real estate.

(13) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a hotelkeeper or innkeeper as defined by ORS 699.005

arranging the rental of transient lodging at a hotel or inn in the course of business as a hotelkeeper

or innkeeper.

(14) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a travel agent arranging the rental of transient

lodging at a hotel or inn as defined in ORS 699.005 in the course of business as a travel agent for

compensation. For the purpose of this subsection, “travel agent” means a person, and employees of

the person, regularly representing and selling travel services to the public directly or [indirectly]

through other travel agents.

(15) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a common carrier arranging the rental of transient

lodging at a hotel or inn as defined in ORS 699.005 in the course of business as a common carrier.

For the purpose of this subsection, “common carrier” means a person that transports or purports

to be willing to transport individuals from place to place by rail, motor vehicle, boat or aircraft for

hire, compensation or consideration.

(16) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a hotel representative arranging the rental of tran-

sient lodging at a hotel or inn as defined in ORS 699.005 in the course of business as a hotel rep-

resentative. For the purpose of this subsection, “hotel representative” means a person that provides

reservations or sale services to independent hotels, airlines, steamship companies and government

tourist agencies.

(17) A nonlicensed individual transferring or acquiring an interest in real estate owned or to

be owned by the nonlicensed individual.

(18) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a general partner for a domestic or foreign limited

partnership duly registered and operating within this state under ORS chapter 70 engaging in the

sale of limited partnership interests and the acquisition, sale, exchange, lease, transfer or manage-

ment of the real estate of the limited partnership.

(19) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a membership camping contract broker or salesperson

registered with the Real Estate Agency selling membership camping contracts.

(20) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a professional forester or farm manager engaging in

property management activity on forestland or farmland when the activity is incidental to the non-

real estate duties involving overall management of forest or farm resources.

(21) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a registered investment adviser under the Investment

Advisers Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. §80b-1 et seq., rendering real estate investment services for the office

of the State Treasurer or the Oregon Investment Council.

(22) A nonlicensed individual who refers a new tenant for compensation to a real estate licensee

acting as the property manager for a residential building or facility while the nonlicensed individ-

ual resides in the building or facility or within six months after termination of the nonlicensed

individual’s tenancy.

[11]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(23) A nonlicensed individual who gives an opinion in an administrative or judicial proceeding

regarding the value of real estate for taxation or representing a taxpayer under ORS 305.230 or

309.100.

(24) A nonlicensed individual acting as a paid fiduciary whose real estate activity is limited to

negotiating a contract to obtain the services of a real estate licensee.

(25) A nonlicensed individual who is acting as a fiduciary under a court order, without regard

to whether the court order specifically authorizes real estate activity.

(26) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a representative of a financial institution or trust

company, as those terms are defined in ORS 706.008, that is attorney in fact under a duly executed

power of attorney from the owner or purchaser authorizing real estate activity, if the power of at-

torney is recorded in the office of the county clerk for the county in which the real estate to be sold,

leased or exchanged is located.

(27) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is [the sole] a member [or a managing member] of a do-

mestic or foreign limited liability company duly registered and operating within this state under

ORS chapter 63 and who is engaging in the acquisition, sale, exchange, lease, transfer or manage-

ment of the real estate of the limited liability company if:

(a) The limited liability company is member-managed; or

(b) The limited liability company is manager-managed, and the nonlicensed individual is

a manager.

(28) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is a partner in a partnership as defined in ORS 67.005

and who is engaging in the acquisition, sale, exchange, lease, transfer or management of the real

estate of the partnership.

(29) [An] A nonlicensed individual who is an officer or director of a domestic or foreign cor-

poration duly registered and operating within this state under ORS chapter 60 and who is engaging

in the acquisition, sale, exchange, lease, transfer or management of the real estate of the corpo-

ration.

SECTION 7. An individual listed in ORS 696.030 may not make a demand for the com-

pensation of a real estate licensee under ORS 696.290.

SECTION 8. ORS 696.125 is amended to read:

696.125. (1) The Real Estate Commissioner may issue a limited license to an applicant for a li-

cense as a real estate broker, principal real estate broker or real estate property manager if the

commissioner determines that the issuance is in the public interest. The commissioner may limit a

license issued under this section:

(a) By term;

(b) To acts subject to the supervision of a specific principal real estate broker;

(c) By conditions to be observed in the exercise and the privileges granted; or

(d) In other ways determined by the commissioner as necessary or appropriate to protect the

public.

(2) A limited license issued under this section [does not confer any property right in the privileges

to be exercised under the license, and the holder of a limited license does not have the right to renewal

of the limited license.] may be renewed as provided by the commissioner by rule. A limited li-

cense may be suspended or revoked, or the real estate licensee may be reprimanded, by the com-

missioner on the grounds set out in ORS 696.301 or for failure to comply with the limitations of the

license.

SECTION 9. ORS 696.130 is amended to read:

[12]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

696.130. (1)(a) If the license of a real estate broker or principal real estate broker is revoked

by the Real Estate Commissioner on grounds related to professional real estate activity other than

the management of rental real estate, the commissioner may not issue a new license until the indi-

vidual complies with the provisions of ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785 and 696.800 to

696.870.

(b) If the license of a licensed real estate property manager is revoked by the commissioner, or

if the license of a real estate broker or principal real estate broker is revoked by the commissioner,

on grounds related to the management of rental real estate, the commissioner may not issue a new

license until the individual complies with the provisions of ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785

and 696.890.

(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, the commissioner may issue the individual a

limited license if, in the discretion of the commissioner, it is in the public interest to do so. The

commissioner may limit a license issued under this subsection:

(a) By term;

(b) To acts subject to the supervision of a specific principal real estate broker; or

(c) By conditions to be observed in the exercise and the privileges granted.

(3) A limited license issued under this section [does not confer any property right in the privileges

to be exercised thereunder, and the holder of a limited license does not have the right to renewal of

such license] may be renewed as provided by the commissioner by rule. A limited license may

be suspended or revoked, or the licensee may be reprimanded, by the commissioner on the grounds

set out in ORS 696.301.

SECTION 10. ORS 696.174 is amended to read:

696.174. (1) To renew an active license, a real estate licensee must complete 30 hours of real

estate continuing education courses that are eligible for credit under ORS 696.182 during the two

years preceding the renewal. The 30 hours must include:

(a) At least three hours in a course on recent changes in real estate rule and law approved by

the Real Estate Board; and

(b)(A) If the real estate broker is renewing an active license for the first time, an advanced

course in real estate practices approved by the Real Estate Agency; or

(B) If a licensed real estate property manager is renewing an active license for the first time,

an advanced course in property management practices approved by the agency.

(2) The agency, in consultation with real estate professionals and educators, shall develop a

[form] reporting format to ensure that a real estate licensee has completed the number of hours

required by subsection (1) of this section. [A completed form must contain] The reporting format

must include:

(a) The date, name and length of time of each course attended;

(b) The name of the real estate continuing education provider that offered the course;

(c) The name of the instructor who taught the course; and

(d) Any other information that the agency requires by rule.

(3) The agency may waive any portion of the requirements of this section for a real estate

licensee who submits satisfactory evidence that poor health or other circumstances beyond the real

estate licensee’s control prevented the real estate licensee from attending part or all of the con-

tinuing education courses required by subsection (1) of this section.

SECTION 11. ORS 696.182 is amended to read:

696.182. (1) The Real Estate Agency, with advice from real estate professionals and educators,

[13]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

shall [prescribe rules for certifying] establish by rule a system for certification and renewal of

real estate continuing education providers.

(2) The agency shall include in the rules that an applicant for certification under this section

must be:

(a) A main office or branch office, with a registered business name as provided under ORS

696.026, of a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker;

(b) A licensed title or escrow company conducting business in this state;

(c) A real estate trade association or a trade association in a related field;

(d) A real estate multiple listing service;

(e) An attorney [admitted to practice in this state] who is an active member of the Oregon

State Bar;

(f) A law firm, in which at least one of the attorneys associated with the law firm is an

active member of the Oregon State Bar;

[(f)] (g) A private career school licensed by the Higher Education Coordinating Commission and

approved by the agency to provide the basic real estate broker’s or property manager’s educational

courses required under ORS 696.022;

[(g)] (h) An accredited community college, an accredited public university listed in ORS 352.002

or a private and independent institution of higher education as defined in ORS 350.635;

[(h)] (i) A distance learning provider as provided by rule of the agency; or

[(i)] (j) Another provider approved by the Real Estate Board.

(3) The Real Estate Agency may provide continuing education without being certified under this

section.

(4) The agency, in consultation with real estate professionals and educators, shall provide by

rule:

(a) A broad list of course topics that are eligible for continuing education credit required by

ORS 696.174; and

(b) Learning objectives for each course topic.

(5) The list of course topics developed by the agency under subsection (4) of this section must

allow for changes in the real estate profession.

(6) The minimum length of each course is one hour. A continuing education provider or course

instructor may allow a break of no more than 10 minutes for each hour of instruction.

SECTION 12. ORS 696.200 is amended to read:

696.200. (1) A licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker shall:

(a) Establish and maintain in this state a place of business designated as the real estate

licensee’s main office;

(b) Register the main office with the Real Estate Agency under a registered business name as

provided in ORS 696.026 [or under the real estate licensee’s licensed name];

(c) Designate the main office by a sign that contains the name under which the real estate

licensee conducts professional real estate activity as provided in ORS 696.026; and

(d) Before changing a main office location, notify the agency of the new location on a form ap-

proved by the agency.

(2) The change of a business location without notification to the agency as required by sub-

sections (1) and (5) of this section is grounds for revocation of a real estate license.

(3) The place of business of a principal real estate [licensee] broker or licensed real estate

property manager must be specified in the application for a [real estate license and stated on the

[14]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

license] registered business name or branch office.

(4) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may:

(a) Establish and maintain one or more branch offices as separate business locations under the

control and supervision of a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker;

and

(b) Conduct and supervise the professional real estate activity of more than one office, whether

a main office or a branch office.

(5) A licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker shall:

(a) Register each branch office with the agency under a registered business name as provided

in ORS 696.026 [or the real estate licensee’s licensed name];

(b) Designate each branch office by a sign that contains the name under which the real estate

licensee conducts professional real estate activity as provided in ORS 696.026; and

(c) Before changing a branch office location, notify the agency of the new location on a form

approved by the agency.

(6) Upon vacating a main office or branch office location, the licensed real estate property

manager or principal real estate broker shall ensure that the sign containing [the real estate

licensee’s name or] the registered business name is removed from the location.

(7) A licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker may not display any

name at a main office or branch office other than the registered business name under which the

real estate licensee conducts professional real estate activity.

SECTION 13. ORS 696.205 is amended to read:

696.205. (1) If a real estate licensee who is the sole principal real estate broker or sole licensed

real estate property manager of a [real estate] registered business name dies or becomes inca-

pacitated, the Real Estate Commissioner may issue a temporary license to the executor, adminis-

trator or personal representative of the estate of the deceased real estate licensee or to the

court-appointed fiduciary of the incapacitated real estate licensee, or to some other individual des-

ignated by the commissioner[, in order to continue to transact the real estate business in the case of

the incapacitated real estate licensee or to wind up the affairs of the deceased or incapacitated real

estate licensee]. The commissioner shall determine whether the temporary licensee may con-

tinue to conduct the professional real estate activity of the real estate licensee or may wind

up the affairs of the real estate licensee. The term of a temporary license issued under this sec-

tion may not exceed one year from the date of issuance unless the commissioner, in the discretion

of the commissioner, extends the term of the temporary license based on sufficient cause provided

by the temporary licensee to the commissioner.

(2) The Real Estate Agency may adopt administrative rules to administer this section or to au-

thorize an individual to [transact] conduct or wind up [real estate business] the professional real

estate activity on behalf of the deceased or incapacitated [real estate licensee] principal real estate

broker or licensed real estate property manager.

SECTION 14. ORS 696.232 is amended to read:

696.232. (1) [An employee or officer of the Real Estate Agency licensed as a real estate licensee

under this chapter shall return the employee’s or officer’s license to the agency at the time of com-

mencing employment. The agency shall hold the license as an active license held in suspense.] The li-

cense status of a real estate licensee employed by the Real Estate Agency shall be placed on

hold at the time that the real estate licensee commences employment with the agency. At

the termination of [an employee’s or officer’s] the employment, the license may be returned to the

[15]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

real estate licensee as an active or inactive license. The agency shall activate a license [held in

suspense] placed on hold without payment of further fee, and the license expires on the date on

which it would have expired if the license had not been [held in suspense] placed on hold.

(2) During the time of employment at the agency, the employee may not conduct pro-

fessional real estate activity.

[(2)] (3) Except as stated in subsection (1) of this section, the [return of the license to the licensee

and all renewals are] real estate licensee is subject to the provisions of ORS 696.010 to 696.495,

696.600 to 696.785, 696.800 to 696.870 and 696.995.

SECTION 15. ORS 696.241 is amended to read:

696.241. (1) As used in this section, “trust funds” means money belonging to others that is re-

ceived or handled by a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker in the

course of conducting professional real estate activity and in the real estate licensee’s fiduciary ca-

pacity.

(2) A licensed real estate property manager, or a principal real estate broker who engages in

the management of rental real estate, shall open and maintain in this state one or more separate

federally insured bank accounts that are designated clients’ trust accounts under ORS 696.245. A

principal real estate broker who engages in the management of rental real estate or a licensed real

estate property manager shall deposit in a [client’s] clients’ trust account all trust funds received

or handled by the principal real estate broker, licensed real estate property manager or real estate

licensees subject to the supervision of the principal real estate broker.

(3)(a) A principal real estate broker who receives or handles trust funds and does not deposit

the trust funds in a licensed neutral escrow depository as described in paragraph (b) of this sub-

section shall open and maintain in this state one or more separate federally insured bank accounts

that are designated clients’ trust accounts under ORS 696.245. Pursuant to written agreement of all

parties to a real estate transaction having an interest in the trust funds, the principal real estate

broker shall immediately place the trust funds in a clients’ trust account.

(b) A principal real estate broker may deposit trust funds in a licensed neutral escrow deposi-

tory in this state.

[(4) Within 10 business days after the date a clients’ trust account is opened, a licensed real estate

property manager or principal real estate broker shall file with the Real Estate Agency, on forms ap-

proved by the agency, the following information about the clients’ trust account:]

[(a) The name of the bank;]

[(b) The account number;]

[(c) The name of the account;]

[(d) The date the account was opened; and]

[(e) A statement by the licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker au-

thorizing the Real Estate Commissioner or the commissioner’s representative to examine the clients’

trust account at such times as the commissioner may direct.]

[(5)] (4) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager who opens a

clients’ trust account under subsection (2) or (3) of this section, or to whom ownership of a clients’

trust account is transferred [under subsection (6) of this section], is liable for all deposits and dis-

bursements made using the clients’ trust account until the principal real estate broker or licensed

real estate property manager closes the account or transfers ownership of the account.

[(6) A licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker who closes a clients’

trust account, or to whom ownership of a client’s trust account is transferred as authorized by the

[16]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

agency by rule, shall notify the agency, within 10 business days after the date the account is closed or

transferred, on a form approved by the agency.]

(5) A principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property manager may not

commingle any other funds with the trust funds held in a clients’ trust account, except for:

[(7)] (a) [Except for] Earned interest on a clients’ trust account as provided in subsections [(9)

and (10)] (7) and (8) of this section[, a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate

broker may not commingle any other funds with the trust funds held in a clients’ trust account.]; and

(b) Earned compensation as provided in subsection (9) of this section.

[(8)] (6) If a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker maintains a

separate clients’ trust account in a branch office, a separate bookkeeping system must be maintained

in the branch office and a copy of the records required under ORS 696.280 must be maintained in

the main office of the licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker.

[(9)] (7) Trust funds received by a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate

broker may be deposited by the licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker

in a federally insured interest-bearing bank account that is designated a clients’ trust account under

ORS 696.245, but only with the prior written approval of all parties [having] who have an interest

in the trust funds. The earnings of the interest-bearing account [do not] inure to the benefit of the

licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker [unless] only if expressly ap-

proved in writing by all parties [having] who have an interest in the trust funds before deposit of

the trust funds.

[(10)] (8) With prior written notice to all parties who have an interest in the trust funds, a

principal real estate broker may place trust funds received by the principal real estate broker in a

real estate sales, purchase or exchange transaction in a federally insured interest-bearing bank ac-

count that is designated a clients’ trust account under ORS 696.245, the earnings of which inure to

the benefit of a public benefit corporation, as defined in ORS 65.001, for distribution to organizations

and individuals for first-time homebuying assistance and for development of affordable housing. The

principal real estate broker shall select a qualified public benefit corporation to receive the interest

earnings.

[(11)] (9) In connection with a real estate sales, purchase or exchange transaction, a principal

real estate broker is not entitled to any part of any interest earnings on trust funds deposited under

subsection [(9)] (7) of this section or to any part of the earnest money or other money paid to the

principal real estate broker as part or all of the principal real estate broker’s compensation until

the transaction has been completed or terminated. The principal real estate broker and the seller

shall negotiate and agree in writing to the disposition of forfeited earnest money at the time of ex-

ecution by the seller of any listing agreement or earnest money agreement. An agreement about the

disposition of forfeited earnest money must be initialed by the seller or immediately precede the

seller’s signature.

[(12)] (10) Trust funds in a clients’ trust account are not subject to execution or attachment on

any claim against a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker.

[(13)] (11) The Real Estate Agency by rule shall establish an optional procedure by which a

principal real estate broker may elect to disburse disputed funds held in relation to the sale, ex-

change or purchase of real estate from a clients’ trust account to the person who delivered the funds

to the principal real estate broker. The procedure must allow disbursal not more than 20 days after

a request is made for the disbursal. A disbursal pursuant to the procedure does not affect the claim

of any other person to the funds.

[17]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

[(14)] (12) The agency may provide by rule for other records to be maintained and for the man-

ner in which trust funds are deposited, held and disbursed. The rules adopted under this sub-

section may include requirements for interest or compensation held in a clients’ trust

account pursuant to subsection (5) of this section to be disbursed from the clients’ trust

account to a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker.

(13) A real estate licensee who, for the purpose of transmitting a check, receives the

check from a buyer or tenant that is payable to a property owner or seller is exempt from

the deposit requirements of subsections (2) and (3) of this section. The agency may deter-

mine by rule the records that must be maintained for checks received as described in this

subsection and the manner in which the checks must be transmitted.

SECTION 16. ORS 696.243 is amended to read:

696.243. (1) Any [real estate broker,] principal real estate broker, licensed real estate property

manager or escrow agent who is required by the Real Estate Commissioner to maintain the canceled

checks used to disburse moneys from the real estate licensee’s clients’ trust account may substitute

a copy of the original canceled check, if the copy is provided by a bank and is produced by optical

imaging or other process that accurately reproduces the original or forms a durable medium for

reproducing the original, and the copy is at least 300 dots per inch in quality.

(2) A [real estate broker,] principal real estate broker, licensed real estate property manager or

escrow agent may use electronic fund transfers for the deposit into or for withdrawal from a clients’

trust account established under ORS 696.241 or 696.578, if the bank [furnishes] provides to the real

estate licensee an accurate paper record of the deposits and withdrawals.

(3) As used in subsection (2) of this section, “electronic fund transfer” has the meaning set forth

in section 903 of the Electronic Transfer Act (P.L. 90-321, 15 U.S.C. §1693a).

SECTION 17. ORS 696.245 is amended to read:

696.245. (1) Each licensed real estate property manager and principal real estate broker, at the

time a clients’ trust account is opened as required under ORS 696.241, shall provide the bank in

which the account is opened with a notice, acknowledged by the real estate licensee and the bank,

in substantially the following form:

_______________________________________________________________________________________

NOTICE OF CLIENTS’ TRUST ACCOUNT AND AUTHORIZATION TO EXAMINE

To:  (name of bank)

Under the Oregon Real Estate License Law, I,  (licensed name), am a li-

censed real estate property manager or licensed principal real estate broker for

 ([licensed name of principal real estate broker or real estate property manager,

or a] registered business name [registered] under ORS 696.026).

Under ORS 696.241, I am required to maintain in Oregon a clients’ trust account for the purpose

of holding funds belonging to others received in the course of conducting professional real estate

activity.

[The] An account[(s)] numbered in the name[(s)] of

is[/are] hereby designated as a clients’ trust account and the account[(s)] is[/are] maintained with

you as a depository for money belonging to persons other than myself and in my fiduciary capacity

as a licensed real estate property manager or licensed principal real estate broker established by

client agreements in separate documents.

[18]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

I hereby authorize you to furnish information requested by the Real Estate Commis-

sioner and/or authorized representative concerning the account listed above as required by

ORS 696.245.

Dated:  (insert date)

(signature of real estate licensee)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT

I, , a duly authorized representative of  (bank), do hereby

acknowledge receipt of the above NOTICE OF CLIENTS’ TRUST ACCOUNT AND AUTHORI-

ZATION TO EXAMINE on  (date).

(signature)

(title)

_______________________________________________________________________________________

(2) Within 10 business days from the date a clients’ trust account is opened, a licensed

real estate property manager or principal real estate broker shall notify the Real Estate

Agency that the account has been opened. The notice must include information about the

clients’ trust account, including but not limited to:

(a) The name of the bank where the account is located;

(b) The account number;

(c) The name of the account;

(d) The date the account was opened; and

(e) An acknowledged copy of the notice described in subsection (1) of this section.

(3) Within 10 business days from the date a clients’ trust account is closed or trans-

ferred, a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker shall notify

the agency that the account has been closed or transferred and shall include in the notice

the date on which the account was closed or transferred.

(4) Notification to the agency under subsections (2) and (3) of this section must be made

in the manner established by the agency by rule.

[(2)] (5) The [real estate licensee] principal real estate broker or licensed real estate property

manager shall retain the acknowledged copy of the notice described in subsection (1) of this section

for at least six years following the closing of the account as provided in ORS 696.280.

SECTION 18. ORS 696.280 is amended to read:

696.280. (1) A licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker shall main-

tain within this state, except as provided in subsection (6) of this section, complete and adequate

records of all professional real estate activity conducted by or through the licensed real estate

property manager or principal real estate broker. The Real Estate Agency shall specify by rule the

records required to establish complete and adequate records of a licensed real estate property

manager’s or principal real estate broker’s professional real estate activity. The only documents the

agency may require by rule a licensed real estate property manager or principal real estate broker

[19]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

to use or generate are documents that are otherwise required by law or are voluntarily generated

in the course of conducting professional real estate activity.

(2) A real estate licensee shall maintain records of the licensee’s attendance in continuing edu-

cation courses for a period of at least three years. The records of attendance must meet the re-

quirements of ORS 696.174.

(3) Records maintained under this section must at all times be open for inspection by the Real

Estate Commissioner or the commissioner’s authorized representatives.

(4) Except as provided in subsection (2) of this section, records under this section must be

maintained by the real estate licensee for a period of not less than six years after the following date:

(a) For a notice of clients’ trust account and authorization to examine under ORS 696.245, the

date the account was closed;

(b) For real estate transactions, the date a transaction closed or failed, whichever is later;

(c) For management of rental real estate, the date on which the record expired, was superseded

or terminated, or otherwise ceased to be in effect; and

(d) For all other records, the date the record was created or received, whichever is later.

(5) Records under this section may be maintained in any format that allows for inspection and

copying by the commissioner or the commissioner’s representatives, as prescribed by rule of the

agency.

(6) The agency may prescribe by rule terms and conditions under which a licensed real estate

property manager or principal real estate broker may maintain records outside this state.

SECTION 19. ORS 696.290 is amended to read:

696.290. (1)(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection, a real estate licensee may

not offer, promise, allow, give, pay or rebate, directly or indirectly, any part or share of the

licensee’s compensation arising or accruing from any real estate transaction or pay a finder’s fee

to any person who is not a real estate licensee licensed under ORS 696.022, including a nonli-

censed individual described in ORS 696.030.

(b) A [real estate broker or] principal real estate broker may pay a finder’s fee or a share of the

real estate licensee’s compensation on a cooperative sale when the payment is made to a licensed

real estate broker in another state or country, provided that:

(A) The state or country in which the nonresident real estate broker is licensed has a law per-

mitting real estate brokers to cooperate with [real estate brokers or] principal real estate brokers in

this state; and

(B) The nonresident real estate broker does not conduct in this state any acts constituting

professional real estate activity and for which compensation is paid. If a country does not license

real estate brokers, the payee must be a citizen or resident of the country and represent that the

payee is in the business of real estate brokerage in the other country.

(2) A real estate broker associated with a principal real estate broker may not accept compen-

sation from any person other than the principal real estate broker with whom the real estate broker

is associated at the time.

(3) A principal real estate broker may not make payment to the real estate broker of another

principal real estate broker except through the principal real estate broker with whom the real es-

tate broker is associated.

(4) Notwithstanding ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785 and 696.800 to 696.870, a

principal real estate broker or a real estate broker associated with a principal real estate

broker may create a corporation, limited liability company, limited liability partnership or

[20]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

other lawfully constituted business organization for the purpose of receiving compensation.

The real estate licensee may not conduct professional real estate activity under a business

organization created pursuant to this subsection.

[(4)] (5) Nothing in this section prevents payment of compensation earned by a real estate bro-

ker or principal real estate broker while licensed because of the real estate broker’s or principal

real estate broker’s association with a different principal real estate broker or because of inacti-

vation of the real estate broker’s or principal real estate broker’s license. The compensation may

be paid directly to the real estate licensee by the principal real estate broker with whom the

real estate licensee was associated at the time the professional real estate activity for which

the compensation was earned was conducted.

[(5)] (6) Nothing in subsection (1) of this section prohibits a [real estate licensee] principal real

estate broker or licensed real estate property manager who has a property management agree-

ment with the owner of a residential building or facility from authorizing the payment of a referral

fee, rent credit or other compensation to an existing tenant of the owner or real estate licensee,

or a former tenant if the former tenant resided in the building or facility within the previous six

months, as compensation for referring new tenants to the real estate licensee.

[(6)] (7)(a) Nothing in subsection (1) of this section prevents an Oregon [real estate broker or]

principal real estate broker from sharing compensation on a cooperative nonresidential real estate

transaction with a person who holds an active real estate license in another state or country, pro-

vided:

(A) Before the out-of-state real estate licensee performs any act in this state that constitutes

professional real estate activity, the real estate licensee and the cooperating Oregon [real estate

broker or] principal real estate broker agree in writing that the acts constituting professional real

estate activity conducted in this state will be under the supervision and control of the cooperating

Oregon principal real estate broker and will comply with all applicable Oregon laws;

(B) The cooperating Oregon [real estate broker or] principal real estate broker or a real estate

broker associated with the principal real estate broker accompanies the out-of-state real estate

licensee and the client during any property showings or negotiations conducted in this state; and

(C) All property showings and negotiations regarding nonresidential real estate located in this

state are conducted under the supervision and control of the cooperating Oregon [real estate broker

or] principal real estate broker.

(b) As used in this subsection, “nonresidential real estate” means real property that is improved

or available for improvement by commercial structures or five or more residential dwelling units.

SECTION 20. ORS 696.301 is amended to read:

696.301. Subject to ORS 696.396, the Real Estate Commissioner may suspend or revoke the real

estate license of any real estate licensee, reprimand any real estate licensee or deny the issuance

or renewal of a license to an applicant who has [done any of the following]:

(1) Created a reasonable probability of damage or injury to a person by making one or more

material misrepresentations or false promises in a matter related to professional real estate activity.

(2) Represented, attempted to represent or accepted compensation from a principal real estate

broker other than the principal real estate broker with whom the real estate broker is associated.

(3) Disregarded or violated any provision of ORS 659A.421, 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to 696.785

[and], 696.800 to 696.870 and 696.890 or any rule of the Real Estate Agency.

(4) Knowingly or recklessly published materially misleading or untruthful advertising.

(5) Acted as an agent and an undisclosed principal in any transaction.

[21]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(6) Intentionally interfered with the contractual relations of others concerning real estate or

professional real estate activity.

(7) Intentionally interfered with the exclusive representation or exclusive brokerage relationship

of another real estate licensee.

(8) Accepted employment or compensation for the preparation of a competitive market analysis

or letter opinion that is contingent upon reporting a predetermined value or for real estate in which

the real estate licensee had an undisclosed interest.

(9) Represented a taxpayer as described in ORS 305.230 or 309.100, contingent upon reporting

a predetermined value or for real estate in which the real estate licensee had an undisclosed in-

terest.

(10) Failed to ensure, in any real estate transaction in which the real estate licensee performed

the closing, that the buyer and seller received a complete detailed closing statement showing the

amount and purpose of all receipts, adjustments and disbursements.

(11) Has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor substantially related to the real estate

licensee’s trustworthiness or competence to engage in professional real estate activity.

(12) Demonstrated incompetence or untrustworthiness in performing any act for which the real

estate licensee is required to hold a license.

(13) Violated a term, condition, restriction or limitation contained in an order issued by the

commissioner.

(14) Committed an act of fraud or engaged in dishonest conduct substantially related to the fit-

ness of the applicant or real estate licensee to conduct professional real estate activity, without

regard to whether the act or conduct occurred in the course of professional real estate activity.

(15) Engaged in any conduct that is below the standard of care for the practice of professional

real estate activity in Oregon as established by the community of individuals engaged in the practice

of professional real estate activity in Oregon.

SECTION 21. ORS 696.310 is amended to read:

696.310. [(1) If two or more principal real estate brokers are in business together, the brokers may

have equal supervisory control over and shall be equally responsible for the conduct of other principal

real estate brokers or real estate brokers associated with the principal real estate brokers, or other

employees employed by the principal real estate brokers. The principal real estate brokers shall execute

a written agreement between them and establish office policies specifying the supervisory control and

responsibility for each principal real estate broker who is a party to the agreement.]

[(2) An act constituting a violation of any of the provisions of ORS 696.010 to 696.495, 696.600 to

696.785, 696.800 to 696.870 and 696.995 or of any rule adopted thereunder by any licensee is not cause

for the suspension or revocation of a license of any real estate licensee associated with or engaged by

such licensee, unless it appears to the satisfaction of the Real Estate Commissioner that such associated

or engaged real estate licensee had guilty knowledge of the act. A course of dealing shown to have been

persistently and consistently followed by any real estate licensee shall constitute prima facie evidence

of such knowledge upon the part of any real estate licensee associated with or engaged by that

licensee.]

(1) If two or more principal real estate brokers are associated with the same registered

business name, the principal real estate brokers shall:

(a) Execute one or more written supervisory agreements between them that:

(A) Fully allocate the supervisory control and responsibility for the professional real es-

tate activities of all real estate brokers associated with the registered business name;

[22]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(B) Include a default allocation of supervisory control and responsibility for any real es-

tate brokers who associate with the registered business name in the future or who are oth-

erwise omitted from the written supervisory agreement; and

(C) Include any supervisory control and responsibility of one principal real estate broker

over another principal real estate broker;

(b) Update the written supervisory agreement if the disassociation of a principal real

estate broker occurs that affects the allocation of supervisory control or responsibility; and

(c) Share equal supervisory control and responsibility for any professional real estate

activity conducted by real estate brokers associated with the registered business name that

is not otherwise covered by the written supervisory agreement.

(2) If a licensed real estate property manager is associated with the same registered

business name as any combination of licensed real estate property managers and principal

real estate brokers, the licensed real estate property managers and principal real estate

brokers shall:

(a) Execute one or more written supervisory agreements between them that:

(A) Fully allocates supervisory control and responsibility for management of rental real

estate conducted by all principal real estate brokers and licensed real estate property man-

agers associated with the registered business name; and

(B) Includes any arrangement for supervisory control and responsibility over the man-

agement of rental real estate conducted by the licensed real estate property managers and

principal real estate brokers;

(b) Update the written supervisory agreement if another licensed real estate property

manager or principal real estate broker associates with the registered business name; and

(c) Update the written supervisory agreement if the disassociation of a licensed real es-

tate property manager or principal real estate broker occurs that affects the allocation of

supervisory control or responsibility over management of rental real estate.

(3) Licensed real estate property managers and principal real estate brokers who do not

exercise administrative or supervisory control over one another are each responsible for

their own management of rental real estate.

SECTION 22. ORS 696.385 is amended to read:

696.385. The Real Estate Agency shall have the power to:

(1) Adopt a seal by which it shall authenticate its proceedings.

(2) From time to time, [prepare and cause to be printed and circulated] circulate among the real

estate licensees of Oregon [such printed matter as it] any material that the agency may deem

helpful or educational or proper for the guidance and welfare of [such] the real estate licensees.

(3) Make and enforce [any and all such reasonable] rules as [shall be deemed] necessary to ad-

minister and enforce the provisions of, and enforce and discharge the duties defined in, any law with

the administration or enforcement of which the agency is charged.

(4) Except as provided in subsection (5) of this section, when the agency proposes to adopt,

amend or repeal a rule concerning real estate licensees, the agency shall:

(a) Submit a copy of the proposed rule to the Real Estate Board at least 10 days prior to pub-

lication of the notice of intended action required under ORS 183.335 for the rule.

(b) Consider any recommendations that the board, by majority vote, makes concerning the pro-

posed rule.

(c) Publish as part of the statement of need in the matters any written comments submitted by

[23]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

the board for publication under paragraph (b) of this subsection.

(5) Subsection (4) of this section does not apply to a temporary rule that is adopted, amended

or suspended pursuant to ORS 183.335 (5). However, the agency shall submit to the board a copy

of any proposed temporary rule as soon as practicable and, to the extent possible under the cir-

cumstances, consider any recommendations that the board may make by majority vote regarding the

temporary rule.

SECTION 23. ORS 696.505 is amended to read:

696.505. As used in ORS 696.505 to 696.590:

(1) “Business day” means a day other than Saturday or Sunday or a federal or State of

Oregon legal holiday.

[(1)] (2) “Close an escrow” means the final disbursement of all funds, property and documents

in an escrow as directed by written escrow instructions from the principals.

[(2)] (3) “Collection escrow” means an escrow in which the escrow agent:

(a) Receives:

(A) Installment payments;

(B) Instruments evidencing or securing an obligation; or

(C) Instruments discharging the security interest; and

(b) Disburses the payments or delivers the instruments upon specified conditions pursuant to the

written instructions of an obligor and obligee.

[(3)] (4) “Compensation” means [a fee, commission, salary, money or] valuable consideration for

services rendered or to be rendered [as well as the promise thereof and], whether contingent or

otherwise.

[(4)] (5) “Escrow” means a transaction in which any written instrument, money, evidence of title

to real or personal property or other thing of value is delivered, for the purpose of paying an obli-

gation or effecting the sale, transfer, encumbrance or lease of real or personal property, to a person

who does not otherwise [having any] have a right, title or interest [therein] in the real or personal

property, to be held by that person as a neutral third party until [the happening of] a specified event

happens or [the performance of] a prescribed condition is performed, when [it] the written in-

strument, money, evidence of title or other thing of value is [then] to be delivered by the neu-

tral third party to a grantee, grantor, promisee, promisor, obligee, obligor, bailee, bailor or any

agent or employee of any of them pursuant to the written instructions of the principals to the

transaction.

[(5)] (6) “Escrow agent” means a person who engages in the business of receiving escrows for

deposit or delivery and who receives or is promised compensation, whether contingent or otherwise,

for or in anticipation of performance.

[(6)] (7) “Escrow trust account” means a bank account that [meets all of the following require-

ments] is:

(a) [Is] Kept separate, distinct and apart from funds belonging to the escrow agent;

(b) [Is] Designated as an escrow trust account; and

(c) [Is] Used to deposit trust funds received by an escrow agent on behalf of a principal.

[(7)] (8) “Principal” means:

(a) The buyer, seller, lessor, lessee or exchanging party in an escrow transaction involving the

sale, lease, lease-option or exchange of real property or personal property;

(b) The borrower in an escrow transaction involving the refinancing of real property or personal

property, including but not limited to the refinancing of an obligation secured by a land sale con-

[24]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

tract requiring a deed to be delivered as part of the refinancing;

(c) The buyer, seller, lender, borrower, vendor or vendee in a collection escrow;

(d) A person directing the escrow agent to hold back funds from a closing escrow for payment

of obligations related to the closing or the financing of real property or personal property;

(e) A person who deposits funds, property or documents in a one-sided escrow, as defined by rule

of the Real Estate Commissioner; or

(f) A subservicer.

[(8)] (9) “Real estate closing escrow” means an escrow in which:

(a) The escrow fee is paid in whole or in part by the principals to a real estate transaction; and

(b) The unpaid purchase price is delivered to an escrow agent for disbursal pursuant to the

written instructions of the principals to the transaction simultaneously on the transfer of specified

title to the real property.

[(9)] (10) “Subservicer” means an escrow agent, a financial institution or a trust company, as

those terms are defined in ORS 706.008, or a collection agency registered under ORS 697.015 when

providing, pursuant to written instructions, a portion of the escrow services for an escrow to an

escrow agent, or a person in the business of receiving escrows under the laws of another state, that

would otherwise provide the escrow services directly to the principals.

[(10)] (11) “Trust funds” means funds held by an escrow agent on behalf of a principal.

SECTION 24. ORS 696.520 is amended to read:

696.520. The provisions of ORS 696.505 to 696.590 do not apply to and the term “escrow agent”

does not include:

(1) Any person doing business under the laws of this state or the United States relating to

banks, mutual savings banks, trust companies, savings and loan associations, consumer finance

companies, or insurance companies except to the extent that the person provides real estate closing

escrow services other than those permitted under subsection (3) of this section.

(2) An attorney at law rendering services in the performance of duties as attorney at law.

(3) Any firm or corporation lending money on real or personal property and which firm or cor-

poration is subject to licensing, supervision or auditing by a federal or state agency but only to the

extent of closing a loan transaction between [such] the firm or corporation and a borrower, and

seller, if a fee for escrow services is not charged to the seller.

(4) Any person doing any of the acts specified in ORS 696.505 [(4)] (5) under order of any court.

(5) Any real estate broker or principal real estate broker licensed under ORS 696.022 who per-

forms the closing for the principals in a real estate transaction handled by the broker, if the prin-

cipals are not charged a separate fee for escrow services.

(6) Any collection agency registered under ORS 697.015 that is engaged in any collection or

billing activity without holding documents relating to the debt.

SECTION 25. ORS 696.582 is amended to read:

696.582. (1) An escrow agent shall hold, as provided in subsection (3) of this section, the amount

of money or other property agreed to as compensation in a written real estate broker’s or principal

real estate broker’s compensation agreement, if the escrow agent has at the office at which the

escrow is being closed, before the date of closing:

(a) A written notice of compensation, signed by the real estate broker or principal real estate

broker who is authorized under rules adopted by the Real Estate Commissioner to enter into the

compensation agreement and sign the written notice of compensation, in substantially the form set

out in subsection (2) of this section; and

[25]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

(b) The written closing instructions of the principals which do not honor the amount and terms

of payment in the notice of compensation.

(2) The notice of compensation required by subsection (1) of this section may not be incorpo-

rated into any document of agreement between the principals or between the broker and a principal,

and [shall] must be in substantially the following form:

_______________________________________________________________________________________

Notice of

Real Estate Compensation

To: 

(Name of Escrow Company)

Re: 

(Names of Principals to

Transaction)

Your Escrow Number: 

The undersigned real estate broker or principal real estate broker states that such broker has

a valid written compensation agreement with  (Name of Principal), one of the principals

to the transaction referred to above, and that such principal is obligated to pay the broker the

compensation on account of that transaction. The compensation amount is $  and is to be

paid on the following terms: . Request is hereby made that the compensation be paid

in that amount and on those terms, out of escrow and as a part of your closing of that transaction.

(Name and Signature of Real Estate Broker

 or Principal Real Estate Broker)

_______________________________________________________________________________________

(3) An escrow agent in a transaction described in subsection (1) of this section may only dis-

burse the moneys or other property to:

(a) The principal real estate broker and principal, based upon a written agreement between

those parties and directed to the escrow agent as disbursement instructions;

(b) Any persons, as directed by order of a court of competent jurisdiction; or

(c) The court, upon filing by the escrow agent of an interpleader action for the moneys or

property.

(4) If the filing of a notice of compensation with an escrow agent under subsection (1) of this

section is made more than 10 days prior to the scheduled closing date, the real estate broker or

principal real estate broker filing the notice shall deliver a copy of the notice to the principal

identified in the notice. If the notice is filed within 10 days of the scheduled closing date, [a copy

of the notice shall be provided by] the escrow agent shall provide a copy of the notice to the

principal identified in the notice at the time of closing.

SECTION 26. ORS 696.710 is amended to read:

696.710. (1) [An individual engaged in the business of, or acting in the capacity of,] A real estate

broker or principal real estate broker conducting professional real estate activity within this

state may not bring or maintain any action [in the courts] for the collection of compensation without

alleging and proving that the individual was a [licensed broker] real estate licensee when the al-

[26]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

leged cause of action arose.

(2) An action [in the courts] for collection of compensation from a client for [an individual en-

gaged in the business of, or acting in the capacity of,] professional real estate activity conducted

by a real estate broker associated with a principal real estate broker may not be brought or main-

tained except by the principal real estate broker with whom the real estate broker was associated

when the alleged cause of action arose.

SECTION 27. ORS 696.800 is amended to read:

696.800. As used in ORS 696.392, 696.600 to 696.785, 696.800 to 696.870 and 696.995, unless the

context requires otherwise:

(1) “Agent” means:

(a) A [real estate broker or] principal real estate broker who has entered into:

(A) A listing agreement with a seller;

(B) A service contract with a buyer to represent the buyer; or

(C) A disclosed limited agency agreement; or

(b) [An individual licensed under ORS 696.022 who has entered into a written contract with] A

real estate broker [or] associated with a principal real estate broker to act as the principal real

estate broker’s agent in connection with acts requiring a real estate license and to function under

the principal real estate broker’s supervision.

(2) “Buyer” means a potential transferee in a real property transaction, and includes a person

who:

(a) Executes an offer to purchase real property from a seller through an agent; or

(b) Enters into an exclusive representation contract or buyer’s service agreement with [a real

estate broker or principal real estate broker] an agent, whether or not a sale or transfer of property

results.

(3) “Confidential information” means information communicated to [a real estate licensee or the

licensee’s] an agent by the buyer or seller of one to four residential units regarding the real property

transaction, including but not limited to price, terms, financial qualifications or motivation to buy

or sell. “Confidential information” does not mean information that:

(a) The buyer instructs the [licensee or the licensee’s] agent to disclose about the buyer to the

seller or the seller instructs the [licensee or the licensee’] agent to disclose about the seller to the

buyer; and

(b) The [licensee or the licensee’s] agent knows or should know failure to disclose would consti-

tute fraudulent representation.

(4) “Disclosed limited agency” means a real property transaction in which the representation

of a buyer and seller or the representation of two or more buyers occurs within the same real estate

business.

(5) “Listing agreement” means a contract between an agent and a seller of real property [and

a real estate broker or principal real estate broker by which the broker has been authorized] that

authorizes the agent, in exchange for compensation, to act [as an agent] on behalf of the seller

[for compensation to offer] in offering the real property for sale or [to find and obtain] in finding

and obtaining a buyer.

(6) “Listing price” means the amount expressed in dollars, specified in the listing agreement, for

which the seller is willing to sell the real property through the listing agent.

(7) “Offer” means a written proposal executed by a buyer for the sale or lease of real property.

(8) “Offering price” is the amount expressed in dollars specified in an offer to purchase for

[27]



SB 67

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

which the buyer is willing to buy the real property.

(9) “Principal” means the person who has permitted or directed an agent to act on the

principal’s behalf. In a real property transaction, this generally means the buyer or the seller.

(10) “Real property” means any estate in real property, including a condominium as defined in

ORS 100.005, a timeshare property as defined in ORS 94.803 and the granting of an option or right

of first refusal. “Real property” also includes a manufactured structure, as defined in ORS 446.561,

owned by the same person who owns the land upon which the manufactured structure is situated.

“Real property” does not include a leasehold in real property.

(11) “Real property transaction” means a transaction regarding real property in which an agent

is employed by one or more of the principals to act in that transaction and includes but is not lim-

ited to listing agreements, buyer’s service agreements, exclusive representation contracts and offers

to purchase.

(12) “Sale” or “sold” refers to a transaction for the transfer of real property from the seller to

the buyer and includes:

(a) Exchanges of real property between the seller and the buyer and third parties; and

(b) Land sales contracts.

(13) “Seller” means a potential transferor in a real property transaction and includes an owner:

(a) Who enters into a listing agreement with [a real estate broker or principal real estate

broker] an agent, whether or not a transfer results; or

(b) Who receives an offer to purchase real property[, of which the seller is the owner,] that the

seller owns from an agent acting on behalf of a buyer.

[28]



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

79th OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY--2017 Regular Session

Senate Bill 68
Printed pursuant to Senate Interim Rule 213.28 by order of the President of the Senate in conformance with pre-

session filing rules, indicating neither advocacy nor opposition on the part of the President (at the request
of Governor Kate Brown for Real Estate Agency)

SUMMARY

The following summary is not prepared by the sponsors of the measure and is not a part of the body thereof subject
to consideration by the Legislative Assembly. It is an editor’s brief statement of the essential features of the
measure as introduced.

Changes fees related to real estate and escrow activities.

A BILL FOR AN ACT

Relating to fees administered by the Real Estate Commissioner; amending ORS 696.270 and 696.530.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

SECTION 1. ORS 696.270 is amended to read:

696.270. [The maximum fees described in this section may be charged by the Real Estate Agency.

Actual fees shall be prescribed by the Real Estate Commissioner with approval of the Oregon Depart-

ment of Administrative Services. This section applies to the following fees:] The Real Estate Com-

missioner, with the approval of the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, shall

prescribe the fees that the Real Estate Agency may charge for activities listed under this

section, subject to the following maximum amounts:

(1) For each licensing examination applied for, $75.

(2) For each applicant for a real estate [broker’s] broker, principal real estate [broker’s] broker

or licensed real estate property [manager’s] manager license[, $230.]:

[(3) For each renewal of a real estate broker’s, principal real estate broker’s or real estate property

manager’s license, $230.]

[(4) For each notification of the opening or closing of a registered branch office of a real estate

broker or principal real estate broker, at times other than the time of issuing or renewing the broker’s

license, $10.]

[(5) For each change of name or address of a broker on the records of the agency, $10.]

[(6) For each duplicate license, when the original license is lost or destroyed and affidavit made

thereof, $20.]

[(7) For each transfer of a real estate broker’s, principal real estate broker’s or real estate property

manager’s license within the same license category, $10.]

[(8) For the renewal of a real estate broker’s, principal real estate broker’s or real estate property

manager’s inactive license, $110.]

[(9) For the reactivation of a real estate broker’s, principal real estate broker’s or real estate

property manager’s inactive license, $75.]

[(10) In addition to the renewal fee, for late renewal, $30.]

[(11) For a temporary license issued under ORS 696.205, $40, and for an extension thereof, $40.]

[(12) For initial registration of a business name, $230.]

(a) Application for license, $300; and

NOTE: Matter in boldfaced type in an amended section is new; matter [italic and bracketed] is existing law to be omitted.

New sections are in boldfaced type.

LC 699



SB 68

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

(b) Change of name, $10.

(3) For each real estate broker, principal real estate broker or licensed real estate prop-

erty manager licensee:

(a) Renewal of active license or active limited license, $300;

(b) Renewal of inactive license or inactive limited license, $150;

(c) Late fee for renewal of active or inactive license charged in addition to the renewal

fee, $150;

(d) Change of name, $10;

(e) Transfer of license between registered business names, $10; and

(f) Reactivation of inactive license, $150.

(4) For each registered business name:

(a) Initial registration, $300;

(b) Renewal of active registration, $50; and

(c) Change of name, $300.

(5) For initial registration of each branch office, $50.

(6) For each temporary license issued under ORS 696.205:

(a) Initial issuance, $150; and

(b) Extension, $150.

(7) For each continuing education provider certification:

(a) Initial application, $300; and

(b) Renewal, $50.

SECTION 2. ORS 696.530 is amended to read:

696.530. (1) The license of an escrow agent expires on the June 30 after the date of issuance or

on a date specified by rule of the Real Estate Commissioner. A license may be renewed as prescribed

by rule of the commissioner, which may include paying any required fees.

(2) The filing fees are:

(a) For filing an original or a renewal application, [$300] $450 for the main office and [$150] $225

for each branch office.

[(b) For filing an application for a duplicate copy of a license, upon satisfactory showing of loss

of the license, the sum of $20.]

[(c)] (b) For a name change [or a change of address] of an escrow agent, $10 for the main office

plus $10 for each affected branch office.

(3) The commissioner, by rule, may provide an opportunity for the late renewal of an expired

escrow agent license by an applicant who fails to renew the license by the date specified under

subsection (1) of this section.

[2]



  1 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 
REGULATION DIVISION REPORT 

February 6, 2016 
 

Regulation Division Manager:  Selina Barnes 
Compliance Specialists 3 (Compliance Coordinator):  Deanna Hewitt, Rob Pierce 
Financial Investigators (Investigator-Auditor):  Jeremy Brooks, Aaron Grimes,  

Frances Hlawatsch, Philip Johnson, Meghan Lewis, Lisa Montellano, Lindsey Nunes 
Compliance Specialist 2:  Carolyn Kalb 
Compliance Specialists 1:  Sue Davenhill, Denise Lewis, Danette Rozell 
Administrative Specialist:  Janae Beaver 
 
Division Overview 
 
The Regulation Division receives complaints and determines validity and assignment for 
investigation.  Investigators gather facts (from interviews and documents), prepare a detailed 
written report and submit to the Manager for review.  The Manager determines whether the 
evidence supports charging a person with a violation of Agency statutes or administrative rules, 
as well the appropriate resolution.  The Manager conducts settlement conferences to resolve 
cases without a contested case hearing.  If a hearing is requested, the investigator works with 
the Assistant Attorney General in preparing for and presenting the case at hearing. 
 
The Compliance Specialists are responsible for conducting:  mail-in audits of licensee’s clients’ 
trust accounts (CTA), expired activity investigations, background checks and self-administered 
compliance reviews.  They also respond to inquiries regarding regulations and filing complaints 
from the public, licensees, and other governmental agencies. 
 
Workload and Activity Indicators 
 
This is a report of the work processed through the stipulation and hearings processes of the 
Real Estate Agency during the calendar year 2016. 

  Stipulation Default Hearing Immediate Total Total % 

Reprimand 6 1     7 13% 

Rep w/ Edu 4       4 7% 

Suspension 1     9 10 18% 

Revocation 2 1 3   6 11% 

Civil Penalty 11 2     13 24% 

Dismissal         0 0% 

Termination of 
Suspension       8 8 15% 

Limited License 2       2 4% 

Deny License   2 3   5 9% 

Total 26 6 6 17 55   

Total % 47% 11% 11% 31%   100% 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  

VII. B. 1. 



  2 

Lisa Montellano began work as a Financial Investigator (Investigator-Auditor) on 1/3/17.  Lisa 
was an investigator at the Oregon State Board of Examiners for Engineering and Land 
Surveying (OSBEELS). 
 
Lindsey Nunes has been assigned the duties of Financial Investigator (Investigator-Auditor) 
through 6/30/17. 
 
Sue Davenhill has been assigned the duties of Compliance Specialist 1 through 6/30/17. 
 
For information on investigations resulting in administrative actions, please review the 
“Administrative Actions Summary” section of the Board packet. 



   

 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION  

January 6th, 2017  
 

Division Manager:   Michael Hanifin 
 

Section Overview: 

The Land Development Division reviews and approves filings related to condominiums, timeshares, 

subdivisions, manufactured home subdivisions, and membership campgrounds. The section reviews and 

approves the foundational documents creating these types of properties, as well as later amendments to those 

documents, to verify compliance with statutory requirements. We also issue the Disclosure Statement 

(sometimes referred to as a Public Report) required for sales of these interests to Oregonians. The Disclosure 

Statement summarizes key information about the condominium for the consumer, much like reading the 

window sticker when car shopping. 
 

Workload and Activity Indicators 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Filings in 2016 exceeded those in 2015 by 6. This past year is closely comparable to the number of filings seen 

in 2014. We continue to see quite a few smaller projects in the 2 to 6 unit range as infill continues, focused 

primarily in the Portland-Metro area. The majority of filings relate to condominiums. The largest filing type is 

timeshares. 
 

Land Development Legislative Projects 
 

Participate with public work group on redraft of provisions ORS Chapter 100. Essentially a housekeeping 

measure, this measure will restructure the condominium filing and approval process. The restructure will clarify 

for the public what is required for each of the various types of filings, close some gaps in the statutory filing 

process, and begin shaping the chapter to support an online filing process. This measure is based on a 2015 

Legislative Counsel draft, and is sponsored by Representative Richard Vial. Currently in placeholder form, the 

text of this measure will be provided as an attachment to the next Board report if it moves forward. 

Participate with public work group in discussion or revision of ORS 94.803 to exempt condominiums who take 

possession of a condo unit subject to a timeshare declaration from the requirement of filing for a Public Report 

on the timeshare before reselling the unit. 
 

Agency Legislative Activity Summary 
 

In addition to tracking the three agency measures, the agency also tracks other measures that can impact agency 

operations. The status of each the agency bills is summarized below, followed by a brief summary of the other 

types of measures the agency is watching.  The full text of the agency measures are attached to this report for 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  

VII. B. 2. 



   

reference. Please note, the status report below is current as of January 24, and will be updated at the Board 

meeting. 

SB 67 -  Housekeeping Measure 
 

Status:  First Reading, assigned to Senate Committee On Business and Transportation 
 

Summary: SB 67 makes technical fixes to Chapter 696, including updates to language and references and 

reorganization of some material for readability. The measure also removes the requirement that a principal real 

estate broker or real estate broker create a client trust account when they act as a courier by taking a check made 

out to the seller or lessor  from a purchaser or lessee for the purpose of conveying same to the seller or lessor. 

This measure also provides that a licensed real estate property manager may not solicit a potential tenant unless 

they have a written property management agreement with the lessor. 
 

SB 68 – OREA Fee Increase 
 

Status: First Reading, assigned to Senate Committee On Business and Transportation 

- Subsequent Referral to Joint Committee On Ways and Means (“subsequent referral” is a legislative note 

on planned future action) 

Summary: This bill updates fees paid to the Agency for professional licenses and other associated fees. It is linked to 

Policy Option Package 101. 

HB 5037 - Governor’s Recommended Budget 
 

Status:  First Reading, assigned the Joint Committee on Ways and Means 

Summary: The budget bill provides the biannual spending limitation for the Real Estate Agency. The effective 

date is July 1, 2017. 

The agency is reviewing a wide variety of measures for potential impact on agency operations or on the 

regulated community. As the Session continues, the list will be refined. Right now we are reviewing multiple 

measures for impact. Without being exhaustive, the issues raised in these measures include: 

- Tenants rights 

- Affordable housing 

- Strengthening solar access laws and rights to electric vehicle charging stations 

- Changes to public records laws 

- Creation of seller’s property disclosure of seismic risk 

- Proposed changes to administrative rulemaking process 

- Changes to Appraiser regulation 

- Laws waiving irrigation provisions in HOA and condominium bylaws 

- State information security 

- Vertical housing development zones 

- Changes to judicial standard of review of agency action 

- Potential changes to PERS 

- Constitutional changes to make rulemaking subject to closer legislative oversight 

- Changes to employment law and collective bargaining 

 



   

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION REPORT 

February 6, 2017 
 

Administrative Services Manager:  Anna Higley 

Communications Coordinator: Mesheal Heyman 

Accountant: Caty Karayel 

Systems Administrator: Tiffani Miller 

Program Analyst: Rus Putintsev 

Customer Service Manager: Madeline Alvarado 

Compliance Specialist: Tami Schemmel  

Licensing Specialist: Nenah Darville  

Receptionist: Liz Hayes 

 

Section Overview 

The Administrative Services Division acts as support to the Agency as well as the first point of contact 

for the public.  This division manages budget/allotment preparation, accounting, purchasing and 

contracting, inventory control, facilities, payroll, special projects, Information Technology (IT), 

licensing services and has recently incorporated communications and the education program. 

 

Mesheal Heyman oversees communications for the Agency which includes development of all content 

for the Agency website, eLicense, OREN-J, and staff newsletter.  

 

The education program is responsible for pre-license education requirements for all license types as well 

as course content, approving real estate schools and approving instructors. The program also is 

responsible for certifying continuing education providers. While this program is very new to this 

division and roles and processes are still being identified, our current priority is evaluating the annual 

renewal of CE Providers to validate that all online educators are using a mechanism to ensure that 

students are completing the full amount of time for which they are credited. Our Customer Service 

Manager is directly contacting each provider that has indicated otherwise on their renewal and ensuring 

that they are quickly coming in to compliance. Our intention is to next commit resources to an educator 

audit process.  

 

Licensing services include assisting real estate brokers, principal brokers, property managers and escrow 

agencies as they manage their licenses using eLicense, assisting customers as they process registered 

business names and branch office registrations in eLicense, registering membership campground 

contract brokers, completing license applicant criminal background check investigations, processing 

escrow licensing and security/bonding files, maintaining all licensing history records, electronic 

processing of fees, and providing general reception services.   

 

Nenah Darville has joined the licensing section as a Licensing Specialist on a temporary assignment as 

Sue Davenhill is currently working out of class in a Compliance Specialist role in Regulations. Nenah 

has most recently been an Office Support Specialist at Business Oregon and has a background in human 

resources.  

 

The Agency is approaching the end of the term of the hosting and maintenance contract with the online 

licensing system vendor, MicroPact. MicroPact management has supplied the Agency with a new annual 

agreement for these services which is currently under review by DAS Procurement and DOJ. The new 

agreement includes a 35% increase in costs to approximately $75,000 annually.  
 

Budget Update 

Revenue: Projected revenue for the 15-17 biennium is $6.37 million, with projected expenses of $6.82 

million.  

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VII. B. 3. 



   

Budget Preparation 2017-19 

Since the 2009-11 biennium operating costs have exceeded revenue. While the real estate market has 

experienced a recovery, licensure has not returned to pre-recession rates and is projected to remain flat 

over the next budget period. Though significant savings measures have been taken, at the current service 

level, we expect a $1.3 million deficient in the 2017-19 biennium. To overcome the revenue shortfall, 

the Agency will seek the first licensing related fee increase since the 1997-99 budget in this legislative 

session.  
 

Licensing Statistics 

Total Licensee Counts by Month: 

Individuals (Persons) Nov-16 Dec-16 

      

Broker – Total 14,045 14,038 

   Active 12,464 12,431 

   Inactive 1,581 1,607 

      

Principal Broker - Total 6,373 6,365 

   Active 6,008 5,996 

   Inactive 365 369 

      

ALL BROKERS Total 20,418 20,403 

   Active 18,472 18,427 

   Inactive 1,946 1,976 

      

Property Manager - Total 890 886 

   Active 826 820 

   Inactive 64 66 

      

MCC Salesperson 32 35 

MCC Broker 2 2 

      

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 21,342 21,326 

   Active 19,332 19,284 

   Inactive 2,010 2,042 

      

Facilities (Companies)     

REMO 6 6 

Registered Business Name 

(RBN) 3,343 3,345 

Registered Branch Office (RBO) 713 718 

Escrow Organization 47 47 

Escrow Branch  145 145 

PBLN 647 643 

PMLN 156 153 

CEP 324 234 

MCC Operator 25 25 

TOTAL FACILITIES 5,406 5,316 

      

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS & 

FACILITIES 26,748 26,642 

 

 

 

 

New Licenses by Month: 

Individuals (Persons) Nov-16 Dec-16 

Broker 134 127 

Principal Broker 14 8 

TOTAL BROKERS 148 135 

Property Manager 7 8 

MCC Salesperson 0 3 

MCC Broker 0 0 

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 155 146 

Facilities (Companies)    

Continuing Education 

Provider (CEP) 2 2 

REMO    

Registered Business Name 20 25 

Registered Branch Office  7 7 

PBLN 6 4 

PMLN 1 0 

Escrow Organization 0 0 

Escrow Branch             0 0 

MCC Operator    

TOTAL FACILITIES 34 36 

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 

& FACILITIES 191 184 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
             



   

December 2016 

ALL LICENSING EXAMS                

Total  

448 

          

   Broker 374           

   Property Manager 17           

   Principal Broker 57      

 

 

 

 

 

Pass Rates 

First Time 

Pass Rate 

Percentage 

2012 2013  2014  2015   2016  

Broker State 76 65 72 69 64 

Broker 

National 

78 77 78 78 74 

Principal 

Broker (pre 

1/1/13) 

81 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Principal 

Broker State 

(post 1/1/13) 

n/a 46 61 62 59 

Principal 

Broker 

National(post 

1/1/13) 

n/a 86 86 78 79 

Property 

Manager 

72 55 61 59 64 

      

 

 

 




